
 

 
 

 

 

 

I hereby certify that I have posted a copy of this agenda at the following locations: 

  □ Administration Building                   □ Library                       □ Post Office 

___________________________________________ / ___________________ 

Name      Date 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


SPECIAL PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 31, 2016 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station –2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 31, 2016 special meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by 6 

Chairperson Dave Lienau at 6:15 P.M. 7 

 8 

Present:  Chairperson Lienau and members Scott Baker, Nate Bell, Don Howard, Marge 9 
Grutzmacher, Mary Kay Shumway and Shane Solomon. 10 

 11 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal 12 

Suppanz 13 

 14 

Others:  Henry Isaksen, Rolf and Lars Johnson, Fred Bexel, and Brian Siegworth of Peninsula 15 

Building Systems. 16 

 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
Lienau noted that no correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone wished to 19 

comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.   20 

 21 
Approval of the agenda: 22 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the May 31, 2016 special 23 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Approval of minutes as published: 26 
As to the minutes for the May 24, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission: 27 
A motion was made by Shumway, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the May 24, 2016 meeting 28 
of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried with Shumway abstaining. 29 
  30 
Business Items: 31 
Item No. 1.  Discussion and review of a proposal for Al Johnson’s regarding an addition to 32 
the main building, and an amendment to the plans for the proposed outdoor seating area; 33 
Consider relevant motions for action: 34 
Revised plans as well as conceptual drawings for the proposed outdoor seating area and the 35 

addition at Al Johnson’s Swedish Restaurant and Butik, as well as an applicable 36 
Development Agreement were included in the meeting packets, and the Commission 37 

members jointly reviewed all of those documents. If the plans are approved the existing 38 

buildings on the Johnson property will be utilized. 39 

 40 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the Plan Commission recommends that the 41 
amended Development Agreement for the property located at 10698 N. Bay Shore Drive between the 42 
Village of Sister Bay and the Johnson Family Trust which was reviewed at this meeting be approved as 43 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 

The previously mentioned plans depict the creation of an expanded warehouse and 46 

commercial kitchen by renovating an existing building which has metal siding on the 47 

Johnson property. The Plan Commission has been charged with conducting architectural 48 

2



Minutes for the May 31, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Plan\2016_05\053116 meeting\word\053116 Special Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - 
Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 05/31/2016; Last Printed: 6/15/2016 4:02 PM 
 -2-  

 

reviews, and concept drawings as well as siding and color samples for the exterior of the 1 

expanded warehouse/commercial kitchen were presented by the Johnsons. Some of the 2 

Commission members noted that the conceptual drawings depict a mural being placed on 3 

the long expanse of the building, which is currently not allowed. Lars Johnson responded 4 

that that portion of the building will actually be covered up by the existing cedar trees, so it 5 

is quite likely that the mural will not even be created. 6 
 7 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Grutzmacher that the building, site and architectural plans, 8 
as well as the proposed siding and color samples for the expanded warehouse/commercial kitchen on 9 
the property which houses Al Johnson’s Swedish Restaurant and Butik are approved as presented on 10 
the condition that a formal landscaping plan which depicts the type of building screening which will 11 
be utilized on the property must be presented to the Plan Commission within 30 days of completion of 12 
the expansion project.  13 
 14 
A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Commission members voted in the following 15 
fashion: 16 
 17 
Lienau – Aye; Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye; Grutzmacher – Aye; Howard – Aye; Shumway – Aye; 18 
Solomon – Aye. 19 
 20 
Motion carried.  21 
 22 
Item No. 2. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 23 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 24 
Jackson noted that he didn’t have anything further to report. 25 

 26 
Item No. 3. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or 27 
employee: 28 
Jackson will be working on a revised draft of the Sign Code and will be presenting that 29 

document to the Commission members ASAP. He will also be drafting some amendments to 30 

the Zoning Code.  31 
 32 
Adjournment: 33 
A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Grutzmacher to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 34 
Commission at 7:24 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 35 

 36 

Respectfully submitted,  37 

 38 
Janal Suppanz,  39 

Assistant Administrator 40 

3



50
' - 0

"

25' - 0" 25' - 0" 25' - 0" 25' - 0" 25' - 0"
125' - 0"

T.O. FLOOR0"

CLEARANCE17' - 0"

T.O. FLOOR0"

CLEARANCE17' - 0"

T.O. FLOOR0"

CLEARANCE17' - 0"

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

ISSUE DATE:

CLIENT NAME:

PROJECT NAME:

PROJECT LOCATION:

SHEET NUMBER:
THIS DRAWING WAS MADE EXCLUSIVELYFOR THE PARTY NAMED IN THE TITLEBLOCK. IT REMAINS THE PROPERTY OFFOREST CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. ANDMAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR COPIEDIN WHOLE OR IN PART BY ANY METHODWITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTENCONSENT OF FOREST CONSTRUCTIONCOMPANY, INC.

FOREST CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.
106 PRAIRIE LANEP.O. BOX 350LUXEMBURG, WI 54217TOLL FREE: 800-242-8085OFFICE: 920-845-2302FAX: 920-845-5002EMAIL: INFO@FORESTBUIDINGS.COMWEB: WWW.FORESTBUILDINGS.COM

LATEST REVISION:

JCB
 1/8" = 1'-0"

BAILEYS HARBOR, WI
50' X 120' X 17' CLEAR
BILL ANDERSON

2/29/16
A2

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Building Plan

2 {3D}

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 South

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 East

 1/8" = 1'-0"5 West

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



1    Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

August Case Law Update 
August 31, 2015 

 
A summary of Wisconsin court opinions decided during the month of August  

related to planning 
 

For previous Case Law Updates, please go to: www.wisconsinplanners.org/learn/law-and-legislation 

 
 
United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit 
 
Regulation	  of	  Speech	  After	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  
	  
It	  did	  not	  take	  long	  for	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court's	  June	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  concerning	  sign	  
regulation	  to	  impact	  other	  cases.	  (For	  a	  summary	  of	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert,	  see	  the	  APA-‐WI	  
June	  Case	  Law	  Update.)	  	  In	  Norton	  v.	  City	  of	  Springfield,	  the	  U.S.	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  for	  the	  Seventh	  Circuit	  
(the	   federal	   intermediate	   appellate	   court	   covering	   the	   region	   that	   includes	  Wisconsin)	   found	   that	   an	  
ordinance	   prohibiting	   panhandling	   in	   the	   City	   of	  Springfield,	   Illinois’	   “downtown	   historic	  
district”	  violates	  the	   First	   Amendment	   because	   it	   embodies	   content	   discrimination	   subject	   to	   strict	  
scrutiny	  under	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court’s	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert.	  	  
	  
(A	  recent	  article	  in	  the	  New	  York	  Times	  discussing	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  described	  the	  legal	  concept	  of	  
“strict	   scrutiny”	   in	   the	   following	   way:	   “Strict	   scrutiny	   requires	   the	   government	   to	   prove	   that	   the	  
challenged	  law	  is	  ‘narrowly	  tailored	  to	  serve	  compelling	  state	  interests.’	  You	  can	  stare	  at	  those	  words	  as	  
long	  as	  you	  like,	  but	  here	  is	  what	  you	  need	  to	  know:	  Strict	  scrutiny,	  like	  a	  Civil	  War	  stomach	  wound,	  is	  
generally	  fatal.”)	  
	  
The	  Norton	  case	  highlights	  how	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  has	  significantly	  changed	  the	   legal	   framework	  
for	   understanding	   content-‐based	   regulation	   of	   speech	   -‐-‐	   something	   frowned	   upon	   under	   the	   First	  
Amendment.	  The	  City	  of	  Springfield’s	  ordinance	  at	  issue	  in	  Norton	  prohibited	  panhandling	  in	  the	  City’s	  
“downtown	  historic	  district,”	  an	  area	  encompassing	  less	  than	  2%	  of	  the	  City.	  (For	  those	  of	  you	  who	  are	  
Abraham	   Lincoln	   buffs	   and	   have	   been	   to	   Springfield,	   you	   know	   the	   area.)	   	   The	   ordinance	   defined	  
panhandling	  as	  an	  oral	  request	  for	  an	  immediate	  donation	  of	  money.	  Signs	  requesting	  money	  and	  oral	  
pleas	  to	  send	  money	  later	  were	  allowed.	  The	  plaintiffs	  in	  the	  case	  contended	  that	  the	  ordinance’s	  rule	  
barring	  oral	  requests	  for	  money	  now	  but	  not	  regulating	  requests	  for	  money	  later	  was	  a	  form	  of	  content	  
discrimination	  in	  violation	  of	  the	  First	  Amendment.	  	  
	  
The	   case	  went	   before	   the	   Seventh	   Circuit	   Court	   of	   Appeals	   two	   times.	   Initially,	   the	   Court	   of	   Appeals	  
decided	   that	   Springfield’s	   anti-‐panhandling	   ordinance	   did	   not	   draw	   lines	   based	   on	   the	   content	   of	  
anyone’s	  speech.	  Following	  that	  decision,	  however,	  the	  plaintiffs	  petitioned	  for	  a	  rehearing.	  The	  Court	  of	  
Appeals	  deferred	  consideration	  of	  the	  petition	  for	  rehearing	  to	  wait	  for	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  to	  issue	  
its	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Gilbert.	  
	  

For	  more	  questions	  or	  comments	  about	  these	  cases,	  please	  contact:	  
Brian	  W.	  Ohm,	  JD,	  VP	  of	  Chapter	  Affairs	  
c/o	  Dept.	  of	  Urban	  &	  Regional	  Planning,	  UW-‐Madison	  
925	  Bascom	  Mall	  
Madison,	  WI	  53706	  
bwohm@wisc.edu	  

	  

11



2     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

Following	   the	  U.S.	   Supreme	   Court’s	   decision	   in	  Reed	   v.	   Town	   of	   Gilbert,	   the	   Seventh	   Circuit	   Court	   of	  
Appeals	   reconsidered	   the	   Norton	   case	   and	   the	   outcome	   was	   much	   different	   -‐-‐	   the	   Court	   enjoined	  
enforcement	  of	  the	  City’s	  anti-‐panhandling	  due	  to	  First	  Amendment	  concerns.	  According	  to	  the	  Seventh	  
Circuit	  Court:	  
	  

[The	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  in]	  Reed	  understands	  content	  discrimination	  differently	  [than	  the	  way	  
it	  was	  considered	  before].	  It	  wrote	  that	  “regulation	  of	  speech	  is	  content	  based	  if	  a	  law	  applies	  to	  
particular	   speech	   because	   of	   the	   topic	   discussed	   or	   the	   idea	   or	   message	   expressed.”	   	   .	   .	   .	  
Springfield’s	  ordinance	  regulates	  “because	  of	  the	  topic	  discussed”.	  The	  Town	  of	  Gilbert,	  Arizona,	  
justified	  its	  sign	  ordinance	  in	  part	  by	  contending,	  as	  Springfield	  also	  does,	  that	  the	  ordinance	  is	  
neutral	  with	   respect	   to	   ideas	  and	  viewpoints.	   The	  majority	   in	  Reed	   found	   that	   insufficient:	   “A	  
law	  that	  is	  content	  based	  on	  its	  face	  is	  subject	  to	  strict	  scrutiny	  regardless	  of	  the	  government’s	  
benign	  motive,	  content‑neutral	   justification,	  or	   lack	  of	   ‘animus	  toward	  the	   ideas	  contained’	   in	  
the	  regulated	  speech.”	  .	  .	   .	   It	  added:	  “a	  speech	  regulation	  targeted	  at	  specific	  subject	  matter	  is	  
content	  based	  even	  if	  it	  does	  not	  discriminate	  among	  view‑points	  within	  that	  subject	  matter.”	  

	  
Sign	  regulations	  after	  Reed	  
	  
The	   Seventh	   Circuit’s	   decision	   in	   Norton	   underscores	   the	   sweeping	   impact	   of	   the	   Supreme	   Court’s	  
decision	   in	  Reed	   for	  sign	  regulations.	   Local	  governments	  need	  to	   review	  their	   sign	  ordinances	  and	  ask	  
“Does	  this	  regulation	  apply	  to	  a	  sign	  because	  of	  the	  content	  on	  the	  sign?”	  In	  other	  words,	  if	  you	  have	  to	  
read	   the	  message	   to	   figure	  out	  how	  a	   sign	   is	   to	  be	   regulated,	   then	   it	   is	   content-‐based	  and	   subject	   to	  
challenge	   under	   Reed.	   Examples	   include	   the	   categorical	   regulations	   found	   in	   many	   sign	   codes	   for	  
“political	   signs,”	   “temporary	   directional	   signs,”	   “ideological	   signs,”	   “identification	   signs,”	   “real	   estate	  
signs,”	   “homeowner	   association	   signs,”	   “drive-‐through	   restaurant	   signs”	   “business	   hours	   of	   operation	  
signs,”	  or	  signs	  based	  on	  other	  content	  distinctions.	  	  	  
	  
Previous	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  cases	  recognized	  content-‐based	  distinctions	  between	  commercial	  and	  non-‐
commercial	   speech.	   The	   Court	   drew	   distinctions	   based	   on	   the	   content	   of	   the	   sign	   and	   held	   that	  
regulation	   of	   commercial	   speech	   is	   subject	   to	   a	   lower	   level	   of	   scrutiny	   by	   the	   courts	   that	   non-‐
commercial	  speech.	   	  Reed	  did	  not	  overrule	  the	   line	  of	  cases	  drawing	  distinctions	  between	  commercial	  
and	  non-‐commercial	  speech	  so,	  at	   least	  for	  the	  time	  being,	  sign	  ordinances	  that	   include	  provisions	  for	  
commercial	  signage,	  such	  as	  special	  regulations	  for	  “temporary	  business	  signs”	  should	  be	  okay.	  	  	  
	  
Justice	   Thomas,	   who	  wrote	   the	  majority	   opinion	   for	   the	   Court	   in	  Reed,	   offered	   some	   other	   content-‐
based	  regulations	  that	  may	  be	  acceptable	  if	  they	  are	  narrowly	  tailored	  to	  ensure	  public	  safety:	  “such	  as	  
warning	  signs	  marking	  hazards	  on	  private	  property,	  signs	  directing	  traffic,	  or	  street	  numbers	  associated	  
with	  private	  houses.”	   It	  will	   be	   critical	   that	   local	   communities	   clearly	   articulate	   the	  purpose	   for	   these	  
regulations.	  	  
	  
Justice	  Thomas	  also	  offered	  examples	  of	  content-‐neutral	  sign	  regulations	  that	  are	  not	  impacted	  by	  Reed.	  
Regulations	   that	   have	   nothing	   to	   do	   with	   a	   sign’s	   message	   include:	   size,	   building	   materials,	   lighting,	  
moving	  parts,	  and	  portability.	  Justice	  Thomas	  also	  states:	  “on	  public	  property,	  the	  Town	  may	  go	  a	  long	  
way	   toward	  entirely	   forbidding	   the	  posting	  of	   signs,	   so	   long	  as	   it	  does	   so	   in	  an	  evenhanded,	   content-‐
neutral	  manner.”	  This	  would	  include	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way.	   If	  signs	  are	  allowed,	  the	  regulations	  must	  
not	  distinguish	  based	  on	  the	  content	  of	  the	  message,	  like	  only	  allowing	  signs	  by	  non-‐profit	  organizations	  
such	  as	  a	  church	  sign	  about	  a	  spaghetti	  supper.	  	  
	  

12



3     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

Justice	   Alito	   wrote	   a	   concurring	   opinion	   that	   included	   a	   non-‐exhaustive	   list	   of	   the	   type	   of	   sign	  
regulations	   that	   would	   be	   content-‐neutral.	   (The	   full	   list	   was	   included	   in	   the	   June	   Case	   Law	   Update.)	  
However,	   the	   list	   raises	   some	  questions.	   Justice	  Alito’s	   list	   includes	   time	   restrictions	  on	   signs	   for	  one-‐
time	  events.	  This	  seems	  at	  odds	  with	  the	  temporary	  directional	  sign	  challenged	  in	  Reed.	  Nevertheless,	  
after	  Reed	  it	  would	  presumably	  be	  appropriate	  to	  have	  sign	  ordinances	  that	  regulate	  “temporary	  signs”	  
based	  on	  factors	  other	  than	  the	  event	  that	  is	  the	  subject	  of	  the	  sign	  such	  as	  allowing	  the	  sign	  to	  remain	  
for	  a	  certain	  number	  of	  days.	  	  
	  
Justice	  Alito’s	  list	  also	  indicated	  that	  it	  would	  be	  appropriate	  to	  have	  signs	  that	  distinguish	  between	  on-‐
premises	  and	  off-‐premises	  signs.	  In	  order	  to	  determine	  if	  a	  sign	  is	  off-‐premises	  or	  on-‐premises,	  the	  local	  
government	  will	  need	  to	  read	  the	  sign.	  Presumably	  the	  on-‐premise/off-‐premise	  distinction	   is	  still	  valid	  
based	  on	  Justice	  Alito’s	  statement	  and	  the	  fact	  that	  prior	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  decisions	  recognized	  those	  
distinctions	  and	  those	  decisions	  were	  not	  overruled.	  For	  example,	  not	  allowing	  off-‐premise	  billboards	  in	  
residential	  areas	  should	  still	  be	  appropriate.	  	  
	  
As	  communities	  remove	  content-‐based	  restrictions,	  they	  can	  explore	  alternatives	  such	  as	  allowing	  “yard	  
signs”	   (as	   opposed	   to	   “yard	   sale”	   which	   would	   not	   be	   content-‐neutral)	   of	   a	   certain	   number	   and	  
dimension	  in	  residential	  districts.	  Regulations	  could	  also	  be	  based	  on	  the	  type	  of	  building	  material	  of	  the	  
sign.	  From	  a	  planning	  perspective,	  it	  will	  be	  important	  to	  stand	  back	  and	  evaluate	  what	  a	  community	  is	  
trying	  to	  accomplish	  through	  sign	  regulations	  and	  how	  much	  regulation	  is	  necessary.	   It	   is	   important	  to	  
review	  other	  ordinances	   that	  may	  relate	   to	  speech,	   like	  Springfield’s	  panhandling	  ordinance,	   to	   insure	  
they	  are	  content-‐neutral.	  
	  
Certainly	  we	  will	  see	  additional	  cases	  on	  these	  issues.	  	  
 
 
Wisconsin Supreme Court Opinions 
 
[No	  planning-‐related	  cases	  to	  report.]	  
	  
	  	  
Wisconsin Court of Appeals Opinions 
 
Boundary	  Change	  Via	  Intergovernmental	  Agreement	  Was	  Proper	  
	  
On	  February	  19,	  2013,	  voters	  in	  the	  Town	  of	  Harrison	  in	  Calumet	  County	  approved	  incorporating	  a	  4.6-‐
square-‐mile	  area	  as	  the	  Village	  of	  Harrison.	  On	  June	  6,	  2013,	  the	  Town	  and	  Village	  of	  Harrison	  published	  
notice	   of	   a	   joint	   public	   hearing	   “to	   discuss	   proposed	   Intergovernmental	   Cooperation	   Agreement	  
affecting	   the	   provision	   of	   municipal	   services,	   apportionment	   of	   costs	   of	   municipal	   services,	  
apportionment	  of	  assets	  and	   liabilities,	  and	  boundary	   line	  adjustments	  between	  the	  Town	  of	  Harrison	  
and	  the	  Village	  of	  Harrison.”	  The	  Town	  and	  Village	  of	  Harrison	  sent	  notice	  of	  the	  meeting	  via	  certified	  
mail	  to	  1910	  property	  owners	  entitled	  to	  receive	  notice	  pursuant	  to	  Wis.	  Stat.	  §	  66.0301(6).	  [Note:	  this	  
case	   deals	   with	   an	   intergovernmental	   agreement	   enacted	   under	   the	   general	   intergovernmental	  
cooperation	  authority,	  NOT	  under	  the	  authority	  to	  create	  cooperative	  boundary	  agreements	  under	  Wis.	  
Stat.	  §	  66.0307.]	  
	  

13



4     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

The	  Town	  and	  the	  Village	  boards	  approved	  the	  agreement	  on	  July	  2,	  2013.	  The	  agreement	  permitted	  the	  
Village	  board	   to	   “trigger	   the	  boundary	   line	   change”	   through	   the	  adoption	  of	   an	  ordinance,	  which	   the	  
Village	  board	  passed	  on	  August	  6,	  2013.	  As	  a	  result	  of	  the	  boundary	  change,	   	  1736	   	  parcels	   	   that	   	  had	  	  
been	   	   located	   	   in	   	   the	   	   Town	   	   were	   	   relocated	   	   to	   	   the	   Village.	   The	   nearby	   Cities	   of	   Kaukauna	   and	  
Menasha,	  the	  Village	  of	  Sherwood,	  and	  some	  individual	  property	  owners	  sued	  the	  Village	  and	  Town	  of	  
Harrison	   arguing	   that	   the	   agreement	   is	   void	   because	   it	   involved	   a	   “major”	   boundary	   change	   that	  
exceeded	  the	  scope	  allowed	  by	  statute	  and	  that	  the	  Town	  and	  Village	  did	  not	  comply	  with	  the	  statutory	  
notice	  requirements	  for	  intergovernmental	  agreements	  because	  the	  notice	  did	  not	  tell	  property	  owners	  
that	  approval	  of	  the	  cooperative	  agreement	  would	  mean	  they	  would	  be	  relocated	  to	  the	  village.	  	  	  
	  
The	  Wisconsin	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  disagreed.	   The	  Court	  noted	   that	   the	   statute	   is	   silent	  on	   the	   scope	  of	  
boundary	   changes	   permitted	   by	   intergovernmental	   agreements.	   The	   Court	   was	   unwilling	   to	   read	  
language	   into	  the	  statute	  creating	  a	  distinction	  between	  “major”	  boundary	  changes	  and	  more	  modest	  
boundary	   changes.	   As	   for	   the	   notice,	   the	   Court	   also	   noted	   that	   the	   statute	   does	   not	   specify	   what	  
information	  must	  be	  contained	  in	  the	  notices.	  As	  a	  result,	  the	  Court	  concluded	  the	  general	  notice	  that	  
there	  would	  be	  “boundary	  line	  adjustments”	  was	  sufficient	  to	  meet	  the	  statutory	  requirements.	  	  	  
	  
The	   case	   is	  City	  of	  Kaukauna	  v.	  Village	  of	  Harrison	   and	   is	   recommended	   for	  publication	   in	   the	  official	  
reports.	  
	  
Distinguishing	  Between	  Rules,	  Ordinances,	  and	  Resolutions	  
	  
Wisconsin	  Carry,	  Inc.	  v.	  City	  of	  Madison,	  involved	  the	  validity	  of	  a	  rule	  adopted	  by	  the	  City	  of	  Madison’s	  
Transit	  and	  Parking	  Commission	  that	  prohibits	  a	  person	  from	  traveling	  in	  a	  city	  bus	  with	  a	  weapon	  (the	  
“bus	   rule”).	   	   The	   City	   of	   Madison	   General	   Ordinances	   authorize	   the	   City’s	   Transit	   and	   Parking	  
Commission,	   the	  City	   agency	   responsible	   for	  overseeing	   the	  City’s	  bus	   system,	   to	  establish	   “rules	   and	  
procedures”	  related	  to	  transit.	  The	  Commission	  adopted	  the	  bus	  rule	  under	  that	  authority.	   	  Wisconsin	  
Carry,	  Inc.,	  an	  organization	  that	  describes	  itself	  as	  a	  “gun	  rights	  organization,”	  and	  one	  of	  its	  members,	  
brought	  suit	  asking	  the	  court	   	  to	   	  declare	   	  that	   	  the	   	  bus	   	  rule	   	   is	   	  preempted	  	  by	   	  Wis.	  Stat.	  §	  66.0409	  
which	   prohibits	   local	   governments	   from	   adopting	   “ordinances”	   	   and	   	   “resolutions”	   	   that	   regulate	  
firearms.	  The	  Wisconsin	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  determined	  that	  the	  Commission’s	  rule	  is	  neither	  an	  ordinance	  
nor	   a	   resolution	   and	   therefore	   the	   rule	  was	   not	   preempted	   by	   the	   prohibition	   on	   local	   regulation	   of	  
firearms.	  	  
	  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 

 

29



 
This memo provides a brief description of the Act.  For more detailed information,  

consult the text of the law and related legislative documents at the Legislature’s Web site at:  http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov. 

___________________________ 
 

 One East Main Street, Suite 401 • P.O. Box 2536 • Madison, WI  53701-2536 
(608) 266-1304 • Fax: (608) 266-3830 • Email:  leg.council@legis.wisconsin.gov 

http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc 

WISCONSIN LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
ACT MEMO 

 

 
2015 Wisconsin Act 391 

[2015 Assembly Bill 582] 

 

Property Rights, Shoreland 
Zoning, Contested Case Hearings, 

Administrative Rule 
Promulgation Process, and 

Deference Afforded Agency Legal 
Interpretations  

 
2015 Wisconsin Act 391 does all of the following: 

 Generally prohibits a local governmental unit from requiring a person to take certain 
actions with respect to real property, or pay a related fee, before purchasing, taking 
title to, or occupying the property. 

 Prohibits a county from enacting a “development moratorium” as defined under 
current law. 

 Prohibits a city, village, town, or county from prohibiting or unreasonably restricting 
the sale or transfer of title to any interest in real property. 

 Requires a political subdivision to provide a method for landowners to receive written 
notice of potential action by the political subdivision that may affect the allowable use 
of the landowner’s property. 

 Provides that a setback line from the ordinary high-water mark established by a 
professional land surveyor may be legally relied upon for purposes of development 
near a water body, in certain circumstances. 

 Generally prohibits local regulation of the maintenance, repair, replacement, 
restoration, rebuilding, or remodeling of all or any part of a structure wholly or 
partially located in the shoreland setback area that is legally located there by operation 
of a variance granted before July 13, 2015. 

30

http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/
mailto:leg.council@legis.wisconsin.gov
http://www.legis.wisconsin.gov/lc


- 2 - 

 Requires an authority issuing building permits to send a copy of certain building 
permits related to shoreland projects to the county clerk. 

 Allows the use of a flat roof on a boathouse as a deck if specified conditions are met. 

 Makes other changes to shoreland zoning laws related to runoff control structures and 
utility equipment. 

 Specifies that conditional use permits issued by a political subdivision need not be 
consistent with the political subdivision’s comprehensive plan. 

 Requires a court to resolve any ambiguity in the meaning of a word or phrase in a 
zoning ordinance or shoreland zoning ordinance in favor of the free use of private 
property. 

 Prohibits a political subdivision from enacting a “down zoning ordinance” unless the 
ordinance is approved by at least two-thirds of the members of its governing body or 
is approved by the landowner (a down zoning ordinance decreases allowable 
development density or reduces permitted uses). 

 Requires an economic impact analysis of a proposed administrative rule to include an 
analysis of the ways in which and the extent to which the proposed rule would place 
any limitations on the free use of private property, including a discussion of 
alternatives to the proposed rule that would minimize any such limitations. 

 Allows the applicant one substitution of an administrative law judge overseeing a 
contested case hearing involving a contract, permit, or other approval issued or 
denied by the Department of Natural Resources or Department of Agriculture, Trade, 
and Consumer Protection. 

 Directs courts to give agency decisions of law restricting a property owner’s free use 
of the owner’s property no deference when reviewing such a decision. 

Effective date:  April 28, 2016 

Prepared by:  Larry Konopacki, Principal Attorney May 3, 2016 

LAK:mcm;ty 

31



 Date of enactment:  April 26, 2016
2015 Assembly Bill 582 Date of publication*:  April 27, 2016

2015  WISCONSIN  ACT  391
AN ACT to renumber 66.1001 (2m), 706.22 (2) (a) 1., 706.22 (2) (a) 2. and 706.22 (2) (a) 3.; to renumber and amend

706.22 (2) (b) and 706.22 (3); to amend 59.69 (4) (intro.), 59.69 (4) (j), 59.69 (5) (f), 59.692 (1k) (a) 2., 59.692 (1k)
(a) 4., 59.692 (1k) (b), 60.61 (2) (a) 6., 60.61 (4) (f), 62.23 (7) (am), 62.23 (7) (d) 4., 66.1001 (2m) (title), 66.1001
(4) (f), 66.10015 (title), 66.10015 (1) (a), 227.57 (10), 236.45 (2) (am) (intro.), 706.22 (title), 706.22 (2) (title) and
706.22 (2) (a) (intro.); and to create 59.692 (1h), 59.692 (1k) (a) 6., 59.692 (1p), 59.692 (7), 66.1001 (2m) (b),
66.10015 (1) (as), 66.10015 (1) (bs), 66.10015 (3), 66.1036, 227.137 (3) (g), 227.445, 227.57 (11), 700.28, 706.22
(2) (a) 2m., 706.22 (2) (a) 3m., 706.22 (2) (b) 2., 706.22 (3) (b) and 895.463 of the statutes; relating to: government
actions affecting rights to real property; the regulation of shoreland zoning; the contents of an economic impact analy-
sis of a proposed administrative rule; the substitution of hearing examiners in Department of Natural Resources and
Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection contested cases; the standard for judicial review of a state
agency action or decision affecting a property owner’s use of the owner’s property; and the property tax treatment
of unoccupied property.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in
senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION  1.  59.69 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is
amended to read:

59.69 (4)  EXTENT OF POWER.  (intro.)  For the purpose
of promoting the public health, safety and general wel-
fare the board may by ordinance effective within the
areas within such county outside the limits of incorpo-
rated villages and cities establish districts of such num-
ber, shape and area, and adopt such regulations for each
such district as the board considers best suited to carry out
the purposes of this section.  The board may establish
mixed−use districts that contain any combination of uses,
such as industrial, commercial, public, or residential
uses, in a compact urban form.  The board may not enact
a development moratorium, as defined in s. 66.1002 (1)
(b), under this section or s. 59.03, by acting under ch. 236,

or by acting under any other law, except that this prohibi-
tion does not limit any authority of the board to impose
a moratorium that is not a development moratorium.  The
powers granted by this section shall be exercised through
an ordinance which may, subject to sub. (4e), determine,
establish, regulate and restrict:

SECTION  2.  59.69 (4) (j) of the statutes is amended to
read:

59.69 (4) (j)  The Subject to s. 66.10015 (3), the den-
sity and distribution of population.

SECTION  3.  59.69 (5) (f) of the statutes is amended to
read:

59.69 (5) (f)  The county zoning agency shall main-
tain a list of persons who submit a written or electronic
request to receive notice of any proposed ordinance or
amendment that affects the allowable use of the property
owned by the person.  Annually, the agency shall inform
residents of the county that they may add their names to

*   Section 991.11,  WISCONSIN STATUTES:   Effective date of acts.  “Every act and every portion of an act enacted by the legislature over the governor’s
partial veto which does not expressly prescribe the time when it takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of publication.”

32



 − 2 −2015 Wisconsin Act 391
 

  2015 Assembly Bill 582

the list.  The agency may satisfy this requirement to pro-
vide such information by any of the following means:
publishing a 1st class notice under ch. 985; publishing on
the county’s Internet site; 1st class mail; or including the
information in a mailing that is sent to all property own-
ers.  If the county zoning agency completes a draft of a
proposed zoning ordinance under par. (a) or if the agency
receives a petition under par. (e) 2., the agency shall send
a notice, which contains a copy or summary of the pro-
posed ordinance or petition, to each person on the list
whose property, the allowable use or size or density
requirements of which, may be affected by the proposed
ordinance or amendment.  The notice shall be by mail or
in any reasonable form that is agreed to by the person and
the agency, including electronic mail, voice mail, or text
message.  The agency may charge each person on the list
who receives a notice by 1st class mail a fee that does not
exceed the approximate cost of providing the notice to
the person.  An ordinance or amendment that is subject
to this paragraph may take effect even if the agency fails
to send the notice that is required by this paragraph.

SECTION  4.  59.692 (1h) of the statutes is created to
read:

59.692 (1h)  If a professional land surveyor licensed
under ch. 443, in measuring a setback from an ordinary
high−water mark of a navigable water as required by an
ordinance enacted under this section, relies on a map,
plat, or survey that incorporates or approximates the ordi-
nary high−water mark in accordance with s. 236.025, the
setback measured is the setback with respect to a struc-
ture constructed on that property if all of the following
apply:

(a)  The map, plat, or survey is prepared by a profes-
sional land surveyor, licensed under ch. 443, after the
effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date].
The same professional land surveyor may prepare the
map, plat, or survey and measure the setback.

(b)  The department has not identified the ordinary
high−water mark on its Internet site as is required under
s. 30.102 at the time the setback is measured.

SECTION  5.  59.692 (1k) (a) 2. of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

59.692 (1k) (a) 2.  Except as provided in par. (b),
requires any approval or imposes any fee or mitigation
requirement for, or otherwise prohibits or regulates, the
maintenance, repair, replacement, restoration, rebuild-
ing, or remodeling of all or any part of a nonconforming
structure or a structure of which any part is legally
located in the shoreland setback area by operation of a
variance granted before July 13, 2015, if the activity does
not expand the footprint of the nonconforming structure.

SECTION  6.  59.692 (1k) (a) 4. of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

59.692 (1k) (a) 4.  Requires any approval or imposes
any fee or mitigation requirement for, or otherwise pro-
hibits or regulates, the vertical expansion of a noncon-

forming structure or a structure of which any part is
legally located in the shoreland setback area by operation
of a variance granted before July 13, 2015, unless the ver-
tical expansion would extend more than 35 feet above
grade level.

SECTION  7.  59.692 (1k) (a) 6. of the statutes is created
to read:

59.692 (1k) (a) 6.  Prohibits placement in a shoreland
setback area of a device or system authorized under par.
(a) 5.

SECTION  8.  59.692 (1k) (b) of the statutes, as created
by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

59.692 (1k) (b)  A county shoreland zoning ordinance
shall allow an activity specified under par. (a) 2. to
expand the footprint of a nonconforming structure or a
structure of which any part is legally located in the shore-
land setback area by operation of a variance granted
before July 13, 2015, if the expansion is necessary for the
structure to comply with applicable state or federal
requirements.

SECTION  9.  59.692 (1p) of the statutes is created to
read:

59.692 (1p)  The department may not promulgate a
standard and a county may not enact an ordinance under
this section that prohibits the owner of a boathouse in the
shoreland setback area that has a flat roof from using the
roof as a deck if the roof has no side walls or screens or
from having or installing a railing around that roof if the
railing is not inconsistent with standards promulgated by
the department of safety and professional services under
ch. 101.

SECTION  10.  59.692 (7) of the statutes is created to
read:

59.692 (7) (a)  In this subsection, “facility” means any
property or equipment of a public utility, as defined in s.
196.01 (5), or a cooperative association organized under
ch. 185 for the purpose of producing or furnishing heat,
light, or power to its members only, that is used for the
transmission, delivery, or furnishing of natural gas, heat,
light, or power.

(b)  The construction and maintenance of a facility is
considered to satisfy the requirements of this section and
any county ordinance enacted under this section if any of
the following applies:

1.  The department has issued all required permits or
approvals authorizing the construction or maintenance
under ch. 30, 31, 281, or 283.

2.  No department permit or approval under subd. 1.
is required for the construction or maintenance and the
construction or maintenance is conducted in a manner
that employs best management practices to infiltrate or
otherwise control storm water runoff from the facility.

SECTION  11.  60.61 (2) (a) 6. of the statutes is
amended to read:

60.61 (2) (a) 6.  The Subject to s. 66.10015 (3), the
density and distribution of population.

33

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55


 − 3 − 2015 Wisconsin Act 391
 

  2015 Assembly Bill 582

SECTION  12.  60.61 (4) (f) of the statutes is amended
to read:

60.61 (4) (f)  The town board shall maintain a list of
persons who submit a written or electronic request to
receive notice of any proposed ordinance or amendment
that affects the allowable use of the property owned by
the person.  Annually, the town board shall inform resi-
dents of the town that they may add their names to the list.
The town board may satisfy this requirement to provide
such information by any of the following means: publish-
ing a 1st class notice under ch. 985; publishing on the
town’s Internet site; 1st class mail; or including the infor-
mation in a mailing that is sent to all property owners.  If
the town zoning committee completes a final report on a
proposed zoning ordinance and the town board is pre-
pared to vote on the proposed ordinance under par. (b) or
if  the town board is prepared to vote on a proposed
amendment under par. (c) 1., the town board shall send a
notice, which contains a copy or summary of the pro-
posed ordinance or amendment, to each person on the list
whose property, the allowable use or size or density
requirements of which, may be affected by the proposed
ordinance or amendment.  The notice shall be by mail or
in any reasonable form that is agreed to by the person and
the town board, including electronic mail, voice mail, or
text message.  The town board may charge each person
on the list who receives a notice by 1st class mail a fee that
does not exceed the approximate cost of providing the
notice to the person.  An ordinance or amendment that is
subject to this paragraph may take effect even if the town
board fails to send the notice that is required by this para-
graph.

SECTION  13.  62.23 (7) (am) of the statutes is amended
to read:

62.23 (7) (am)  Grant of power.  For the purpose of
promoting health, safety, morals or the general welfare of
the community, the council may regulate and restrict by
ordinance, subject to par. (hm), the height, number of sto-
ries and size of buildings and other structures, the per-
centage of lot that may be occupied, the size of yards,
courts and other open spaces, subject to s. 66.10015 (3)
the density of population, and the location and use of
buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, mining,
residence or other purposes if there is no discrimination
against temporary structures.  This subsection and any
ordinance, resolution or regulation enacted or adopted
under this section, shall be liberally construed in favor of
the city and as minimum requirements adopted for the
purposes stated.  This subsection may not be deemed a
limitation of any power granted elsewhere.

SECTION  14.  62.23 (7) (d) 4. of the statutes is
amended to read:

62.23 (7) (d) 4.  The city council shall maintain a list
of persons who submit a written or electronic request to
receive notice of any proposed zoning action that may be
taken under subd. 1. a. or b. or 2. that affects the allowable

use of the person’s property.  Annually, the city council
shall inform residents of the city that they may add their
names to the list.  The city council may satisfy this
requirement to provide such information by any of the
following means: publishing a 1st class notice under ch.
985; publishing on the city’s Internet site; 1st class mail;
or including the information in a mailing that is sent to all
property owners.  If the plan commission, the board of
public land commissioners, or city plan committee of the
city council completes action on any tentative recom-
mendations that are noticed under subd. 1. a., proposed
changes to a proposed district plan and regulations that
are submitted under subd. 1. b., or proposed amendments
that are submitted under subd. 2., and the city council is
prepared to vote on the tentative recommendations, pro-
posed changes to a proposed district plan, and regulations
or proposed amendments, the city council shall send a
notice, which contains a copy or summary of the tentative
recommendations, proposed changes to a proposed dis-
trict plan, and regulations or proposed amendments, to
each person on the list whose property, the allowable use
of which, may be affected by the tentative recommenda-
tions or proposed changes or amendments.  The notice
shall be by mail or in any reasonable form that is agreed
to by the person and the city council, including electronic
mail, voice mail, or text message.  The city council may
charge each person on the list who receives a notice by 1st
class mail a fee that does not exceed the approximate cost
of providing the notice to the person.  An ordinance or
amendment that is subject to this subdivision may take
effect even if the city council fails to send the notice that
is required by this subdivision.

SECTION  15.  66.1001 (2m) (title) of the statutes is
amended to read:

66.1001 (2m) (title)  EFFECT OF ENACTMENT OF A COM-
PREHENSIVE PLAN, CONSISTENCY REQUIREMENTS.

SECTION  16.  66.1001 (2m) of the statutes is renum-
bered 66.1001 (2m) (a).

SECTION  17.  66.1001 (2m) (b) of the statutes is
created to read:

66.1001 (2m) (b)  A conditional use permit that may
be issued by a political subdivision does not need to be
consistent with the political subdivision’s comprehen-
sive plan.

SECTION  18.  66.1001 (4) (f) of the statutes is
amended to read:

66.1001 (4) (f)  A political subdivision shall maintain
a list of persons who submit a written or electronic
request to receive notice of any proposed ordinance,
described under par. (c), that affects the allowable use of
the property owned by the person.  Annually, the political
subdivision shall inform residents of the political subdi-
vision that they may add their names to the list.  The polit-
ical subdivision may satisfy this requirement to provide
such information by any of the following means: publish-
ing a 1st class notice under ch. 985; publishing on the

34



 − 4 −2015 Wisconsin Act 391
 

  2015 Assembly Bill 582

political subdivision’s Internet site; 1st class mail; or
including the information in a mailing that is sent to all
property owners.  At least 30 days before the hearing
described in par. (d) is held a political subdivision shall
provide written notice, including a copy or summary of
the proposed ordinance, to all such persons whose prop-
erty, the allowable use of which, may be affected by the
proposed ordinance.  The notice shall be by mail or in any
reasonable form that is agreed to by the person and the
political subdivision, including electronic mail, voice
mail, or text message.  The political subdivision may
charge each person on the list who receives a notice by 1st
class mail a fee that does not exceed the approximate cost
of providing the notice to the person.

SECTION  19.  66.10015 (title) of the statutes is
amended to read:

66.10015 (title)  Limitation on development regu-
lation authority and down zoning.

SECTION  20.  66.10015 (1) (a) of the statutes is
amended to read:

66.10015 (1) (a)  “Approval” means a permit or
authorization for building, zoning, driveway, storm-
water, or other activity related to land development a
project.

SECTION  21.  66.10015 (1) (as) of the statutes is
created to read:

66.10015 (1) (as)  “Down zoning ordinance” means
a zoning ordinance that affects an area of land in one of
the following ways:

1.  By decreasing the development density of the land
to be less dense than was allowed under its previous
usage.

2.  By reducing the permitted uses of the land, that are
specified in a zoning ordinance or other land use regula-
tion, to fewer uses than were allowed under its previous
usage.

SECTION  22.  66.10015 (1) (bs) of the statutes is
created to read:

66.10015 (1) (bs)  “Members−elect” means those
members of the governing body of a political subdivi-
sion, at a particular time, who have been duly elected or
appointed for a current regular or unexpired term and
whose service has not terminated by death, resignation,
or removal from office.

SECTION  23.  66.10015 (3) of the statutes is created to
read:

66.10015 (3)  DOWN ZONING.  A political subdivision
may enact a down zoning ordinance only if the ordinance
is approved by at least two−thirds of the members−elect,
except that if the down zoning ordinance is requested, or
agreed to, by the person who owns the land affected by
the proposed ordinance, the ordinance may be enacted by
a simple majority of the members−elect.

SECTION  24.  66.1036 of the statutes is created to read:

66.1036  Building permit for a shoreland struc-
ture.  If an activity in a shoreland setback area to which
s. 59.692 (1k) (a) or (b) applies requires a building per-
mit, the city, village, or town that issues the building per-
mit for that activity shall provide a copy of the building
permit to the county clerk.

SECTION  28.  227.137 (3) (g) of the statutes is created
to read:

227.137 (3) (g)  An analysis of the ways in which and
the extent to which the proposed rule would place any
limitations on the free use of private property, including
a discussion of alternatives to the proposed rule that
would minimize any such limitations.

SECTION  29.  227.445 of the statutes is created to read:
227.445  Substitution of hearing examiner

assigned by division of hearings and appeals.  (1)  A
person who has applied for a contract, permit, or other
approval from the department of natural resources or the
department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection
that is the subject of a contested case hearing for which
the division of hearings and appeals has assigned a hear-
ing examiner may file a written request with the adminis-
trator of the division of hearings and appeals in the
department of administration, not later than 10 days after
receipt of the notice under s. 227.44 (1), for a substitution
of a new hearing examiner.

(2)  No person may file more than one request under
sub. (1) for a single hearing.

(3)  Upon receipt of a request under sub. (1), the
administrator of the division of hearings and appeals
shall determine if the request was made timely and in
proper form.  If the request was made timely and in proper
form, the administrator of the division of hearings and
appeals shall transfer the matter to another hearing
examiner and shall transmit to the new hearing examiner
all materials relating to the matter.

SECTION  30.  227.57 (10) of the statutes is amended
to read:

227.57 (10)  Upon Subject to sub. (11), upon such
review due weight shall be accorded the experience, tech-
nical competence, and specialized knowledge of the
agency involved, as well as discretionary authority con-
ferred upon it.

(12)  The right of the appellant to challenge the consti-
tutionality of any act or of its application to the appellant
shall not be foreclosed or impaired by the fact that the
appellant has applied for or holds a license, permit, or
privilege under such act.

SECTION  31.  227.57 (11) of the statutes is created to
read:

227.57 (11) (a)  Upon review of an agency action or
decision affecting a property owner’s use of the property
owner’s property, the court shall accord no deference to
the agency’s interpretation of law if the agency action or

35



 − 5 − 2015 Wisconsin Act 391
 

  2015 Assembly Bill 582

decision restricts the property owner’s free use of the
property owner’s property.

SECTION  32.  236.45 (2) (am) (intro.) of the statutes,
as affected by 2015 Wisconsin Act 48, is amended to
read:

236.45 (2) (am) (intro.)  Ordinances under par. (ac)
may include provisions regulating divisions of land into
parcels larger than 1 1/2 acres or divisions of land into
less than 5 parcels, and, except as provided in s. 59.69 (4)
(intro.) and subject to s. 66.1002, may prohibit the divi-
sion of land in areas where such prohibition will carry out
the purposes of this section.  Such ordinances shall make
applicable to such divisions all of the provisions of this
chapter, or may provide other surveying, monumenting,
mapping and approving requirements for such division.
The governing body of the municipality, town, or county
shall require that a plat of such division be recorded with
the register of deeds and kept in a book provided for that
purpose or stored electronically.  “COUNTY PLAT,”
“MUNICIPAL  PLAT,” or “TOWN PLAT” shall be
printed on the map in prominent letters with the location
of the land by government lot, recorded private claim,
quarter−quarter section, section, township, range, and
county noted.  When so recorded, the lots included in the
plat shall be described by reference to “COUNTY
PLAT,” “MUNICIPAL PLAT,” or “TOWN PLAT,” the
name of the plat and the lot and block in the plat, for all
purposes, including those of assessment, taxation,
devise, descent, and conveyance as defined in s. 706.01
(4).  Such ordinance, insofar as it may apply to divisions
of less than 5 parcels, shall not apply to:

SECTION  33.  700.28 of the statutes is created to read:
700.28  Prohibiting unr easonable restrictions on

alienation of property.  (1)  In this section, “political
subdivision” means a city, village, town, or county.

(2)  A political subdivision may not prohibit or unrea-
sonably restrict a real property owner from alienating any
interest in the real property.

SECTION  34.  706.22 (title) of the statutes, as created
by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

706.22 (title)  Prohibition on imposing time−of−
sale, purchase, or occupancy requirements.

SECTION  35.  706.22 (2) (title) of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

706.22 (2) (title)  REQUIREMENTS TIED TO SALE, PUR-
CHASE, OR TAKING OCCUPANCY OF PROPERTY PROHIBITED.

SECTION  36.  706.22 (2) (a) (intro.) of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is amended to read:

706.22 (2) (a) (intro.)  Except as provided in par. (b),
no local governmental unit may by ordinance, resolution,
or any other means restrict do any of the following:

1m.  Restrict the ability of an owner of real property
to sell or otherwise transfer title to or refinance the prop-
erty by requiring the owner or an agent of the owner to
take certain actions with respect to the property or pay a
related fee, to show compliance with taking certain

actions with respect to the property, or to pay a fee for
failing to take certain actions with respect to the property,
at any of the following times:

SECTION  37.  706.22 (2) (a) 1. of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is renumbered 706.22
(2) (a) 1m. a.

SECTION  38.  706.22 (2) (a) 2. of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is renumbered 706.22
(2) (a) 1m. b.

SECTION  39.  706.22 (2) (a) 2m. of the statutes is
created to read:

706.22 (2) (a) 2m.  Restrict the ability of a person to
purchase or take title to real property by requiring the per-
son or an agent of the person to take certain actions with
respect to the property or pay a related fee, to show com-
pliance with taking certain actions with respect to the
property, or to pay a fee for failing to take certain actions
with respect to the property, at any of the following times:

a.  Before the person may complete the purchase of or
take title to the property.

b.  At the time of completing the purchase of or taking
title to the property.

c.  Within a certain period of time after completing the
purchase of or taking title to the property.

SECTION  40.  706.22 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes, as
created by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is renumbered 706.22
(2) (a) 1m. c.

SECTION  41.  706.22 (2) (a) 3m. of the statutes is
created to read:

706.22 (2) (a) 3m.  Restrict the ability of a purchaser
of or transferee of title to residential real property to take
occupancy of the property by requiring the purchaser or
transferee or an agent of the purchaser or transferee to
take certain actions with respect to the property or pay a
related fee, to show compliance with taking certain
actions with respect to the property, or to pay a fee for
failing to take certain actions with respect to the property,
at any of the following times:

a.  Before the purchaser or transferee may take occu-
pancy of the property.

b.  At the time of taking occupancy of the property.
c.  Within a certain period of time after taking occu-

pancy of the property.
SECTION  42.  706.22 (2) (b) of the statutes, as created

by 2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is renumbered 706.22 (2) (b)
(intro.) and amended to read:

706.22 (2) (b) (intro.)  Paragraph (a) does not prohibit
do any of the following:

1.  Prohibit a local governmental unit from requiring
a real property owner or the owner’s agent to take certain
actions with respect to the property not in connection
with the purchase, sale, or refinancing of, or the transfer
of title to, the property.

SECTION  43.  706.22 (2) (b) 2. of the statutes is created
to read:

36

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/48
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55


 − 6 −2015 Wisconsin Act 391
 

  2015 Assembly Bill 582

706.22 (2) (b) 2.  Prohibit a local governmental unit
from enforcing, or otherwise affect the responsibility,
authority, or ability of a local governmental unit to
enforce, a federal or state requirement that does any of the
things a local governmental unit is prohibited from doing
under par. (a).

SECTION  44.  706.22 (3) of the statutes, as created by
2015 Wisconsin Act 55, is renumbered 706.22 (3) (a) and
amended to read:

706.22 (3) (a)  If a local governmental unit has in
effect on July 14, 2015, an ordinance, resolution, or
policy that is inconsistent with sub. (2) (a) 1m., the ordi-
nance, resolution, or policy does not apply and may not
be enforced.

SECTION  45.  706.22 (3) (b) of the statutes is created
to read:

706.22 (3) (b)  If a local governmental unit has in
effect on the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB
inserts date], an ordinance, resolution, or policy that is
inconsistent with sub. (2) (a) 2m. or 3m., the ordinance,
resolution, or policy does not apply and may not be
enforced.

SECTION  46.  895.463 of the statutes is created to read:
895.463  Zoning ordinances.  In any matter relating

to a zoning ordinance or shoreland zoning ordinance

enacted or enforced by a city, village, town, or county, the
court shall resolve an ambiguity in the meaning of a word
or phrase in a zoning ordinance or shoreland zoning ordi-
nance in favor of the free use of private property.

SECTION  47.0Initial applicability .
(1)  ACTIONS AFFECTING LAND USE.  The treatment of

sections 59.69 (5) (f), 60.61 (4) (f), 62.23 (7) (d) 4., and
66.1001 (4) (f) of the statutes first applies to an action
taken by a city, village, town, or county that affects the
allowable use of land on the effective date of this subsec-
tion.

(2)  DEVELOPMENT REGULATION AUTHORITY.  The treat-
ment of section 66.10015 (1) (a) of the statutes first
applies to a project for which the first request for approval
is submitted on the effective date of this subsection.

(3)  DOWN ZONING.  The treatment of sections 59.69
(4) (j), 60.61 (2) (a) 6., 62.23 (7) (am), and 66.10015
(title), (1) (as) and (bs), and (3) of the statutes first applies
to a down zoning ordinance that is enacted on the effec-
tive date of this subsection.

(4)  CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS.  The treatment of sec-
tion 66.1001 (2m) (b) of the statutes first applies to a con-
ditional use permit that is in effect on the effective date
of this subsection.

37

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/55


Village of Sister Bay 
COMMISSION REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date: 06/28/16  
             Item No.: 04 
 
Activities: 
  
Bay Shore Drive- Work on the project is complete, with only a few minor cleanup items remaining.  Some painting has yet to oc-
cur, and traffic control signage needs to be “rebanded” (will be completed following the final inspection on June 25) so that it does 
not conflict with our new pole banners. 
 
Sledding Hill- Pat Hockers has completed some top soil removal on the hill.  His stone rake has been sent off to be repaired by 
Caterpillar, and he is waiting for the return of that piece of equipment so he can complete the work there. 
 
Beach- the Spring inspection by JJR took place on June 16.  Some items were discussed that need to be retouched, 1.  Rock place-
ment North of swim dock.  2.  Sod subsidence North of Swim Dock.  3.  Fencing/netting needs to be repaired, and will remain in 
place until the end of September, 2016. 4.  Weeding and maintenance of the planting areas 
 
Staff is working to develop some narrative signage for the Beach, so that visitors will have the opportunity to learn about some of 
the less obvious features of the project, such as the rain gardens, native plantings, and coarse sand placement. 
 
Harbor View- Engineering work is 95% complete for the project.  It is my understanding in talking to the developer that 2 lots are 
under contract. 
 
Stony Ridge- Closing has taken place, and a preconstruction meeting is scheduled for June 20 to kick off the project. 
 
Wayfinding Signage- We received our State Approved plans on June 16.  We have 2 bids to date, and the Finance and Parks 
Committees will need to consider the bids that we have received.  The project has evolved from when it was first discussed and 
conceptualized financially, and will take more resources than were originally budgeted if the totality of the project is to come to 
fruition. 
 
Other Development-  I’ve issued permits for single family homes on Cherrywood, Northwoods, and Westwood in the last 120 
days.  Its pretty impressive, given that there were only 4 single family permits issued total from 2013-2015.  
 
The Mill Rd. West Property is set to close with Al Gokey on June 30.  Al has indicated that he intends to pour foundations for the 
site later this fall. 
 
Immediate Action- Staff has asked Mike Kahr to repair the swim dock and a section of J dock following damage from a storm ear-
lier this year.   
 
Code Enforcement 

 Dogs in Park-  I’ve asked a large number of patrons to kindly remove their dogs from the park in the last 2 weeks.  Until 
signs are located in the Park, it will be difficult to enforce this ordinance.  The Parks guys have ordered the signs, and are 
awaiting them for installation. 

 

 I initiated an enforcement action on 2460 Cherrywood Ct due to construction workers spilling rocks and mud onto the 
public road; it was cleaned up, but not to my satisfaction. 

 
 I am initiating action, as a result of some complaints on a number of properties due to their unkempt nature. 

 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 

38




